
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

School Board Office Tuesday, November 24, 2015 
7:00 pm 

PRESENT 
 
TRUSTEES: L. Brekke, J. Struck, Q. De Courcy, R. Butt-Grau  
 
STAFF:  T. Taylor, S. Brenna-Smith, M. Grenier 
 
OTHERS: R. Bardati, J. Trainor, V. Vilks, J.McMurray 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 
Chair L. Brekke called the meeting to order at 7:02pm 
 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 
 
Moved by R. Butt-Grau seconded J. Struck by that the agenda be adopted as amended. 

CARRIED 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES: 
 

Moved by R. Butt-Grau seconded by Q. De Courcy, that the minutes of the Regular Meeting of                
October 27, 2015 be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Nil 

 
5. DISPOSITION OF PREVIOUS PRESENTATIONS 

 
Nil 

 
 
 



 
 
 
6. FINANCIAL UPDATE:  

 
a) Financial statements as presented by Susan Brenna-Smith (report attached) 

 
b)  District 5-Year Capital Plan and 2015-2016 Routine Capital Plan:  
 

Moved by R. Butt-Grau, seconded by J. Struck that the Board of Education approve the District 5-Year 
Capital Plan and the 2015-2016 Routine Capital Plan as presented in the attachments. 

CARRIED 

 
7. QUESTIONS REGARDING FINANCIAL 

 
Discussion regarding Ministry restricted capital funds (shareable with Ministry) versus Board restricted 
capital funds (not shared). 

 
8. REPORTS 

 
a) Chairperson (L. Brekke): 

i) Report attached 
 

b) Education Partnership Committee 
i) No report 

 
c) Parent Advisory Council / Trustee Liaison Reports: 

 
i) Southern Zone  (Q. De Courcy) 

-AGM was held on Oct 28, 2015 
 

ii) Nakusp Elementary School  (J. Struck)  
-Meeting Nov 18 
-Discussed DPAC funds 
-Request to move LED sign inside 
-Next meeting Jan 21st 
 

iii) Lucerne Elementary-Secondary School (R. Butt-Grau) 
-No report 

 
iv) Nakusp Secondary School (L. Brekke) 

-No report 
 

v) District Parent Advisory Council  (L. Brekke) 
-No report 



 
 
 

vi) CUPE/Board Liaison Meeting (L. Brekke) 
-No report 

 
vii) ALTA/Board Liaison Meeting  

-Discussed step 1 and 2 of new curriculum report  
-Agreement to add 1 teacher to the Education Partnership Committee 
-Melding of CA - process 
-Request to reinstate retirement incentive 

 
viii) Student Council/Student Voice Liaison 

-No report 
 

ix) Occupational Health and Safety Committee 
-Meeting November 16, 2015 
 

x) Chamber of Commerce 

 Nakusp: Light up Celebration scheduled for December 

 New Denver/Silverton: Community events Nov 27 and Dec 10  
 

xi) Community Consultative Group 
-No report 

 
xii) Strong Start Centres 

-No report 
 

xiii) Arrow Lakes Aboriginal Educational Advisory Council  
- Meeting scheduled for December 1, 2015 
 

 
d) Branch / BCSTA / BCPSEA 

 
i) Branch: No report 

 
ii) BCSTA:  Report attached  

 
iii) BCPSEA:  No report  

 
e) Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer: (T. Taylor) 

i) Report attached 
 



 
 
Moved by R. Butt-Grau, seconded by Q. De Courcy that the board of Education write a letter to the 
Ministry of Education thanking them for current funding of capital projects including LED Lighting, Heating, 
Ventilation and Air Conditioning Upgrades and two replacement School Busses. 

CARRIED 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

 a) Lucerne Connectivity – Board Decision  
 
Moved by Q. De Courcy, seconded by J. Struck That the Board of Education approve the installation of a 
hybrid system that would include both wired and wireless infrastructure on the condition that the cost is 
feasible, to bring the existing technological infrastructure at Lucerne Elementary Secondary School up to 
current standards. 
 
Moved by R. Butt-Grau, seconded by Q. De Courcy to amend the first motion to read as follows 
following approve the... Installation of a dual system that would include a fully wired infrastructure 
throughout the school with the addition of a wireless infrastructure in the high school section of the 
school. 

CARRIED 
 

Moved by R. Butt-Grau, seconded by Q. De Courcy that the Board of Education approve the installation 
of a dual system that would include a fully wired infrastructure throughout the school with the addition 
of a wireless infrastructure in the high school section of the school. 

CARRIED 
 
 b) Draft letter to Canada Customs (R. Butt-Grau) 
 
This item was deferred to the next Regular meeting of the Board. 

 
c) Policy 8500 - Policy Development:  
 

Moved by Q. De Courcy, seconded by J. Struck that the Board of Education adopt Policy 8500, Policy 
Development. 

CARRIED 
 

 d) Abandon Policies  
 
Moved by J. Struck, seconded Q. De Courcy by That the Board of Education abandon policies 1520, 6710, 
6720, 7130, 8012, 1515, 3195, 3281, and 3340 as these policies are either redundant, or are covered by 
Provincial Legislation, Ministerial Orders, District Protocol, or Collective Agreements.   

CARRIED 
 

 e) Bylaw 14 – Organization and Operation of the Board  



 
 
 
Moved by Q. De Courcy, seconded by R. Butt-Grau that the Board of Education of School District 10 
(Arrow Lakes) approve Bylaw 14 and that Bylaw 14 be given all three readings at the Regular Meeting of 
November 24, 2015. 

CARRIED 
 
Moved by J. Struck, seconded by Q. De Courcy that the Board of Education of School District 10 (Arrow 
Lakes) approve first reading of Bylaw 14, Organization and Operation of the Board.  

CARRIED 
 
Moved by J. Struck, seconded by Q. De Courcy that the Board of Education of School District 10 (Arrow 
Lakes) approve second reading of Bylaw 14, Organization and Operation of the Board.  

CARRIED 
 
Moved by R. Butt-Grau, seconded by J. Struck that the Board of Education of School District 10 (Arrow 
Lakes) approve, pass and adopt the third reading of Bylaw 14, Organization and Operation of the Board.  

CARRIED 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
a) Capital Bylaw 126931 – Announcement 
 

The announcement of the Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning upgrade was captured in the 
Superintendent Report to the Board. 

 
b) Capital Bylaw 126996: 
 

Moved by R. Butt-Grau, seconded by Q. De Courcy that the Board of Education of School District 10, 
Arrow Lakes approve Capital Bylaw No 126996; and that Capital Bylaw No. 126996; Lighting Upgrade be 
given all three readings at the Regular public meeting of November 24, 2015.  
 
Moved by R. Butt-Grau, seconded by J. Struck that the Board of Education of School District 10 (Arrow 
Lakes) approve first reading of the Capital Bylaw as approved by the Minister and specifying a maximum 
expenditure of $245,400 for the 2015-16 Routine Capital Project, Bylaw No 126996. 
 
Moved by Q. De Courcy, seconded by R. Butt-Grau that the Board of Education of School District 10 
(Arrow Lakes) approve second reading of the Capital Bylaw as approved by the Minister and specifying a 
maximum expenditure of $245,400 for the 2015-16 Routine Capital Project, Bylaw No 126996. 
 
Moved by J. Struck seconded by R. Butt-Grau that the Board of Education of School District 10 (Arrow 
Lakes) approve, pass and adopt the third reading of the Capital Bylaw as approved by the Minister and 
specifying a maximum expenditure of $245,400 for the 2015-16 Routine Capital Project, Bylaw No 
126996. 



 
 

 
c) December Office closure – December 21st – December 31st  
 

Moved by Q. De Courcy, seconded by J. Struck that the Board of Education approve the Board office 
closure for December 21st through to December 31st for the holidays.  

CARRIED 
 
11. NEXT MEETING DATES: 

 
 a) Education Partnership Committee Meeting –  6:00PM – December 8, 2015 
  
 b) Regular Board Meeting –     7:00PM – December 8, 2015 

 
 

12. QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC: 
 

Discussion on improvement of numeracy in the District. 
 
Discussion on LESS connectivity. 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
R. Butt-Grau adjourned the meeting at 9:20 pm 

 
 
 

___________________________________  _______________________________________ 
L. Brekke       T. Taylor 
Chairperson      Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer 



















Reports for Nov. 24 Regular Meeting 

 

Board Chair Report:  

-Correspondence: 

-letters received from other districts regarding MyEDBC and its problems; regarding Exempt Staff 

compensation; and Funding Issues 

-several letters from LESS parents and students both for and against wireless installation in the school 

-letter from Minister of Education regarding the shared interests between the Ministry and BCSTA to 

recognize and showcase teacher innovation and to acknowledge the commitment of both the Ministry 

and BCSTA in the delivery of education 

 

BCSTA: 

- The Education Committee will be resending the survey to trustees in  

January 

 

Slocan Chamber of Commerce 

-Merchant Night in New Denver Dec 10 

-Meet and Mingle Nov. 27 

 

Nakusp Chamber: 

-Light Up celebration in December 

 

 



 

Superintendent’s Report – November 24, 2015  

1 

  
 

1. Routine Capital Funding from Ministry of Education 
 The District is thrilled to announce that our routine capital funding application to the 

Ministry has resulted in funding for several high priority capital projects in the district 
 Routine Capital projects represent a new funding system in BC begun this year and 

with a three year commitment from the Ministry 
 Routine Capital funding, in part, acknowledges that smaller rural districts are 

disadvantaged through the AFG or Annual Facility Grant process as this funding in 
small districts, is not sufficient to deal with more than routine maintenance of district 
facilities or, at best, patchwork response to capital replacement 

 $339,400 has been approved by the Ministry of Education for the replacement of the 
24 year old boiler and heating system at Lucerne School. Replacing this boiler has 
been an area of concern for many years, given that the cost exceeds our AFG funding 

 On November 16, the district received notification of an additional $245,400 approved 
for the purposes of installing LED lighting upgrades at both Nakusp Elementary, 
Nakusp Secondary and the School Board Office and Maintenance Shops. This 
funding will be key in helping the district replace our lighting system with more 
efficient fixtures and bulbs, thereby reducing energy costs for the district.  

 This LED lighting grant, in tandem with the Lucerne heating upgrade grant, will 
provide much-needed infrastructure for the district which would have been impossible 
with our Annual Facilities Grant 

 Finally – more good news! The 2008 district propane bus which has not functioned for 
many years, has been approved for replacement this year. The District will purchase 
a 20-26 passenger bus in replacement for this propane bus. We are responding to the 
input from our community which has suggested that the 72 passenger busses are 
often not filled to capacity. Most likely, this new bus will be used on the Edgewood 
run, as this run requires a tighter turning radius in winter and is rarely used for field 
trips of more than 26 students.  

 And – 12 year old bus 4101 will also be replaced this school year. Given the major 
issues we have had this year with bus breakdowns and rising costs of repairs on our 
fleet, these replacement busses are fantastic news.  

 The District is very grateful to the Ministry and to Treasury Board for allowing Routine 
Capital funds to be released to support rural districts. This funding for the boiler, the 
busses and the LED lighting will allow us to use our AFG resources more efficiently  

2. Growing Innovation Grant received  
 SD 10 is happy to have received Growing Innovation in Rural Sites of Learning 

funding from the Ministry through the Rural Education Advisory Council again this 
year in the amount of $2000 for a new project we’ve entitled Design Thinking: 
“Making” a Difference in the World 

 Design Thinking is a hands-on learning project involving 13 artists, artisans, makers 
and tradespeople in our communities who will work in classroom residencies of 2 
days to 2 weeks with teachers and students across the district 

           November 24, 2015            
Regular Board Meeting 

           Superintendent/Secretary Treasurer Report 

 



 

Superintendent’s Report – November 24, 2015  

2 
 70% of these artists, artisans and makers graduated from SD 10 schools, have grown 

their artistic and trades careers, and chosen to move back to our communities – a 
focus on exploring careers in the arts and trades that can allow students to return to 
their home communities is also envisioned. 

 We have also applied for a $10,000 ArtStarts grant to fund this project and will find 
out in December if we have been successful in this application 

 Previous Growing Innovation projects in our district have focused on our signature 
pedagogy – place conscious learning. These projects have included Telling the 
Stories of the Nikkei https://tellingthestoriesofthenikkei.wordpress.com  The Values 
of Doukhobor Community: Then and Now 
http://www.ruralteachers.com/gallery/gi-images/doukhobor-videos , 
Reconciliation Through Art http://sd10.bc.ca/reconciliation-through-art/ , A 
Place of Peace and Belonging, and Rocking the Page 
http://rockingthepage.sd10.bc.ca  

3. Post-Secondary Partnerships and Research Grants 
 There is an increased interest from our post-secondary partners in BC to work in 

collaboration with the K-12 sector across the province and study educational practice  
 SD 10 is participating in several applications to the Social Sciences and Humanities 

Research Council (SSHRC) where our post-secondary colleagues will research 
district educational work 

1. UBC is applying for a 5 year major SSHRC grant which will study amongst 
other aspects, the impact of the Growing Innovation in Rural Sites of 
Learning initiative. SD 10 has received funding and done these projects since 
the initiative began. Dr. Leyton Schnellert will be conducting this research 
which aligns with his current work with the district. 

2. Selkirk College, along with College of the Rockies and Okanagan College, is 
applying for a 3 year SSHRC grant with the aim of studying Workforce 
Development through the Columbia Basin Rural Development Initiative and 
has asked for our partnership to examine K-12 rural workforce development 

http://www.cbrdi.ca/kootenay-workforce-development/ 
3. University of Victoria researcher Dr. Catherine McGregor is leading the 

SSHRC research of Inquiring Districts – a consortium of 15 districts 
across BC which use inquiry to impact student learning. The district will 
submit a case study overview on our district professional learning teams 
as one of our key inquiry practices.  

4. SD 10-Healthy Community Partnership to Support Learning  
 The District and the Healthy Community Society of the North Slocan Valley are 

working on a shared use partnership agreement 
 The Society has been very proactive in applying for grants and providing 

infrastructure for students and community at the Lucerne School including the school 
garden, the school greenhouse and most recently, the joint Farm to School programs 
at Lucerne 

 Many thanks to the Society for their leadership and vision in working side by side with 
the school and community to create powerful learning experiences around 
horticulture, sustainability, food security and nutrition 

5. Minister of Auditor General Report on Aboriginal Education  
 A report on Aboriginal Education in K-12 Education in BC was just published by the 

Office of the Auditor General 
 Though results for Aboriginal learners in the province have improved, there is a need 

https://tellingthestoriesofthenikkei.wordpress.com/
http://www.ruralteachers.com/gallery/gi-images/doukhobor-videos
http://sd10.bc.ca/reconciliation-through-art/
http://rockingthepage.sd10.bc.ca/
http://www.cbrdi.ca/kootenay-workforce-development/


 

Superintendent’s Report – November 24, 2015  

3 
to continue the work to ensure that there is equity and access for Aboriginal learners 

 The report also identifies that the Ministry of Education must work more closely in the 
future with Superintendents and Boards of Education in indigenous learning 

 http://www.bcauditor.com/pubs/2015/audit-education-aboriginal-students-bc-
public-school-system  

6. Economic Stability Dividend for Teachers and Support Staff  
 CUPE support staff and teachers will enjoy an additional .45% wage increase due to 

the government’s payment of an ESD this year 
 Economic Stability Dividends are paid as part of the negotiated Collective 

Agreements of both teacher and support staff unions by the government 
 ESD is paid each year of the Collective Agreement if actual real GDP growth is one 

percentage point above forecast real GDP growth, then up to a 0.5 per cent wage 
increase would result beyond whatever wage increase had been negotiated in the 
contract and will be covered by the government rather than districts. 

7. Exempt Staff Compensation Update 
 The District has submitted to BCPSEA, a report on current and projected Principal 

and Vice Principal salary increases once the Exempt Compensation freeze is lifted 
 Exempt staff have had no increases since 2009 
 Up to 2% increases effective July 1,2015 and 2% effective January 1, 2016 may be 

approved by PSEC (Public Sector Employer’s Council) and if so, must be covered 
from within district budgets 

 Increases for other exempt district staff may be considered by PSEC in the future 
8. Education Transformation Update  

 This 15 member committee with all our education partners meets next on December 
3rd from 1 pm – 3:30 pm at the Board Office  

 The Committee will recommend how our 10 hours of additional New Curriculum 
Support time will be allocated in this school year 

9. Fauquier School Update  
 December 1st we will hold an evening community meeting 
 BC Hydro informs that they are not able to provide sewage hookups to any 

prospective lots in Fauquier 
 As a result, a ROWP (Registered Onsite Waste Professional) will be engaged to 

assess potential lot layout based on septic regulations 
10.   November 23rd Pro-D day  

 Carole Fullerton (Numeracy) and Leyton Schnellert (Engaging Diverse Learners and 
new Curriculum) worked with all district teachers and Education Assistants Nov 23rd  

 Teacher comments ranged from “The new curriculum is becoming more concrete for 
me”, and “I learned about how important it is to create inquiry learning projects where 
students are asking the questions”, to “Thank you for providing the opportunity to 
attend Carole's workshop …it was as though I had just found my "math glasses", and 
put them on. I could see before, however, with the math glasses in place I could see 
even better…I was able to see how I could tweak certain aspects of my teaching to 
present some concepts in a slightly different way. The more tools we have in our 
toolboxes, the more likely we are to find ways to help those students who are building 
their own toolboxes. 

http://www.bcauditor.com/pubs/2015/audit-education-aboriginal-students-bc-public-school-system
http://www.bcauditor.com/pubs/2015/audit-education-aboriginal-students-bc-public-school-system


 
 

Related Legislation:  School Act, Part 6, Division 2.0, Section 85 Page 1 of 3 
Policy No. 8500 Reviewed: 25 September 2015 
Adopted: DD/Month/YY   
Amended: 9-September-2015  History of Dates Amended: N/A  
  

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 (ARROW LAKES) 
POLICY MANUAL 
    
8500 Policy Development 
 
 
 

 

 
1.0 General 
 

1.1 Policies constitute the will of the Board in determining how the District 
operates. Policies provide effective direction for the actions of the Board, 
Superintendent, staff, students and the broader school community. 

 
1.2 It is the responsibility of the Board to develop, adopt, review or revise policies 

on a regular basis. 
 

1.3 The Board is guided in its policy making by the requirements to provide public 
education which is in compliance with the School Act and provincial legislation. 

 
1.4 The Board encourages participation of Trustees, employees, students, parents 

and the broader school community in identifying the need for a policy. They 
may make written suggestions or recommendations for a new policy or revision 
of an existing policy to the Board. 

 
2.0 Policy Stages 
 
 2.1 Planning 

The Board, in cooperation with the Superintendent, shall assess the need for a 
policy and identify its critical attributes. 

 
 2.2 Development 

The Policy Committee shall make available to the Board a draft policy or 
recommendations to rescind a policy after it has researched, consulted with 
affected parties or individuals, developed or amended a policy.  

  
2.3 Implementation 
 

2.3.1 The Board is responsible for the implementation of its own governance 
policies.  

2.3.2 The Board and the Superintendent share the responsibility for 
implementation of policies.  

2.3.3 The Superintendent is responsible for the implementation of 
administrative procedures. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Related Legislation:  School Act, Part 6, Division 2.0, Section 85 Page 2 of 3 
Policy No. 8500 Reviewed: 25 September 2015 
Adopted: DD/Month/YY   
Amended: 9-September-2015  History of Dates Amended: N/A  
  

 2.4 Review/Evaluation 
The Board, in cooperation with the Superintendent, shall evaluate each policy 
in a timely manner in order to determine whether or not it is meeting its 
intended purpose. 

 
3.0 Policy Development, Amendment, Adoption and Rescindment 
 

3.1 A proposal to develop, amend, adopt or rescind a policy shall be initiated by a 
Notice of Motion at a regular meeting of the Board. Such notice of motion 
should include background information and recommendations. 

 The Board may assign the review or development of the policy to the Policy 
Committee for consideration and recommendation. 

 
3.2 The Board and/or the Policy Committee shall ensure that staff, parents, 

students, individuals or other groups who may be affected by the 
development, amendment or removal of a policy are consulted and allowed to 
offer input towards the draft policy. 

 
3.3 The Policy Committee will review the policy, identify changes, request further 

research, consult with the Education Partnership Committee, abandon the 
draft policy, or recommend that the policy be presented to the Board for 
Notice of Motion to adopt. 

 
3.4 When appropriate or requested, the Superintendent shall seek legal advice on 

the intent and the wording of the policy. 
 
3.5 Once input has been received, the Board and/or the Policy Committee will 

request that a final draft policy be presented by Notice of Motion at a Regular 
Board meeting for: 

 
 3.5.1 Final approval, or 
 3.5.2  Referral for additional amendments 
 
3.6 A policy receiving Notice of Motion shall be posted on the District website and 

it shall include the title, a brief description and purpose. 
 

4.0 Guidelines 
 

4.1 In the absence of existing policy, the Board may make decisions, by resolution, 
on matters affecting the administration, management and operation of the 
District. Such decisions carry the weight of policy until such time as a specific 
policy is developed and adopted. 

 
4.2 The Superintendent/Secretary Treasurer shall develop, review and update 

administrative procedures and protocols as deemed necessary for the effective 
operation of the District. These procedures must be in accordance with Board 
policies. 

 
4.3 Administrative procedures and protocols are detailed in the District’s 

Administrative Procedure Manual. 
 



 
 

Related Legislation:  School Act, Part 6, Division 2.0, Section 85 Page 3 of 3 
Policy No. 8500 Reviewed: 25 September 2015 
Adopted: DD/Month/YY   
Amended: 9-September-2015  History of Dates Amended: N/A  
  

5.0 Policy Format 
 

5.1 Each policy will conform to a standard format which includes: a heading, policy 
number, policy title, legal references, cross-references, and a log of dates of 
approval and revision. 

 
5.2  A template for the standard format is included in the Administrative 

Procedures Manual. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


















